
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

815 North Orlando Smith Road 
Oglesby, IL  61348-9692 

 
 
 
 

Board Meeting 
A G E N D A 

 
 
 
 

Wednesday, January 15, 2025 
Board Room 

4:30 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 

NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding 
   the agenda, please call the President’s office, 224-0402. 
 



Tentative Board Committee Meetings 
Audit Finance Committee: January, April, June, and November 
Planning Committee: February and October 
Facilities Committee: May and August 
Closed Session Meeting Minutes Committee: June and December 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities 
for students and our community by providing access to affordable, 

high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 
 

 
 BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 
January 
 
 
February 
Authorize Budget Preparation 
Reduction in Force 
Tuition and Fee Review 
Three-year Financial Forecast 
Tenure Recommendations 
ICCTA Award Nominations 
 (Alumnus, Student Trustee, Ethical) 
 
 
March 
Reappointment of Non-tenured Faculty 
President’s Evaluation 
ICCTA Award Nominations 
 (FT/PT Faculty, Student Essay, 
 Business/Industry) 
 
 
April 
Board of Trustees Election (odd years) 
Organization of Board (odd years) 
 
 
May 
Budget Adjustments 
President’s Contract Review 
Vice Presidents’ Contract Renewals 
 
 
June 
Authorization of Continued Payment for 
     Standard Operating Expenses 
College Insurance 
 
 
 
 
 

July 
Tentative Budget 

a. Resolution Approving Tentative Budget 
b. Authorization to Publish Notice of  
    Public Hearing 

RAMP Reports 
Athletic Insurance 
 
 
August 
Budget 
 a.  Public Hearing 
 b.  Resolution to Adopt Budget 
 
 
September 
Protection, Health, and Safety Projects 
Cash Farm Lease 
Approval of College Calendar (even years) 
 
 
October 
Authorize Preparation of Levy 
Audit Report 
IVCC Foundation Update 
 
 
November 
Adopt Tentative Tax Levy 
Student Fall/Employee Demographic Reports 
 
 
December 
Adopt Tax Levy 
Schedule of Regular Meeting Dates and Times 
 
 

  
 MISSION STATEMENT 
 



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Wednesday, January 15, 2025 – 4:30 p.m. – Board Room (C-307) 
 
The meeting can be accessed by the public at link https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/81228555729 
and meeting ID number 812 2855 5729. For dial-in, call 1 (312) 626-6799. 
 

A G E N D A 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Moment of Silence 

4. Roll Call 

5. Approval of Agenda 

6. Public Comment 

7. Recognition of Emeritus/Emerita Status Recipients 

8. Closed Session – 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, 
or dismissal of specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation; 
and 3) closed session minutes. 

9. Consent Agenda Items - Anyone may remove an item from the consent item list by 
requesting the chair to do so. Items removed will be discussed and voted upon immediately 
following passage of the remaining consent items. 

9.1 Approval of Minutes –December 12, 2024 Closed Session Minutes Review 
 Committee Meeting and December 12, 2024 Board Meeting (Pages 1-9) 

9.2 Approval of Bills - $1,181,462.74 

9.2.1 Education Fund - $907,878.88 

9.2.2 Operations and Maintenance Fund - $111,915.24 

9.2.3 Auxiliary Fund - $71,477.89 

9.2.5 Restricted Fund - $11,065.22 

9.2.6 Audit Fund - $14,667.00 

9.2.6 Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund – $64,038.51 

9.2.8 Grants, Loans, and Scholarship Fund - $420.00 

9.3 Treasurer’s Report (Pages 10-32) 

9.3.1 Financial Highlights (Pages 11-12) 

9.3.2 Balance Sheet (Pages 13-14) 

9.3.3 Summary of FY25 Budget by Fund (Pages 15-23) 

9.3.4 Budget to Actual by Budget Officers (Page 24) 

9.3.5 Statement of Cash Flows (Page 25) 

9.3.6 Investment Status Report (Pages 26-30) 

https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/81228555729


IVCC Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 
January 15, 2025 
Page 2 
 

9.3.7 Disbursements - $5,000 or more (Pages 31-32) 

9.4 Personnel – Stipends for Pay Periods Ending November 30, 2024, December 14,  
 2024, and December 28, 2024, and Part-Time Faculty and Staff Appointments  
 December 2024 (Pages 33-37) 

10. Student Trustee’s Report 

11. President’s Report 

12. Committee Reports 

13. Purchase Request – Audio-Visual Technology Upgrades for CTC Conference Center, 
Kitchen, and Yoga Studio (Pages 38-43) 

14. Purchase Request – Furniture for Distance Learning Classroom CTC-206 (Page 44) 

15. Approval – Inactivation of Basic and Advanced Dental Office Management Certificates  
(Page 45) 

16. Approval – ECE Director Qualified Certificate (Page 46-47) 

17. Approval – Board Policy 04.06 Audits (Pages 48-49) 

18. Items for Information (Pages 50-56) 

18.1 Staff Appointment – Danielle (Jackson) Bell, Administrative Assistant III, 
Student Services (Page 50) 

18.2 Staff Appointment – Sarah Ursini, Administrative Assistant I, Financial Aid 
(Page 51) 

18.3 Board Policy 04.09 Fund Balance (Page 52) 

18.4 IRS 2025 Mileage Rate (Page 53) 

18.5 Thank You – LEASE (Page 54) 
18.6 Thank You – Family of Catherine Bangert (Page 55) 
18.7 Employee Separations Report (Page 56) 

19. Trustee Comment 

20. Approve and Retain – Closed Session Minutes 

21. Other 

22. Adjournment 



1



______    ______ 
 EJS         AMS 

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees 

Minutes of Regular Meeting 
December 12, 2024 

The Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513 convened a regular 
session at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, December 12, 2024 in the Board Room (C307) at Illinois Valley 
Community College. 

Members Physically Present: Everett J. Solon, Chair 
Jay K. McCracken, Vice Chair 
Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 
Amy L. Boyles 
Jane E. Goetz 
Maureen O. Rebholz 
Emma J. Garretson, Student Trustee 

Members Virtually Present: 

Members Telephonically Present: 

Members Absent: 

Others Physically Present: Tracy Morris, President 
Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance 
Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services 
Mary Beth Herron, Director of Human Resources 
Walt Zukowski, Attorney 

Others Virtually Present: Rebecca Donna 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 
A moment of silence was held to remember Nancy Cotter of Princeton, who is the mother of Truck 
Driver Training instructor Mark Cotter; Donna Marie Schmidt of Nora Springs, Iowa, who is the 
grandmother of Kim Herout, Administrative Assistant for the Workforce Development Division; 
Cathy Bangert of Ottawa, who retired from IVCC after 18 years of service in multiple roles 
including Director of Institutional Research; Milton Highhouse of Belleville, father-in-law of 
assistant softball coach Scott Shirley; and R. William Clement of Peshtigo, Wisconsin, grandfather 
of Director of Enrollment Services Tom Quigley. 

PUBLIC HEARING ON 2024 TAX LEVY 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Boyles to suspend rules temporarily to allow 
for public hearing on the 2024 Tax Levy. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON 2024 TAX LEVY 
None 

2



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
Page 2 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
A motion was made by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Ms. Garretson to return to regular session. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve the agenda.  
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
AUDIT PRESENTATION 
The comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ending June 20, 2024 was highlighted 
by Mr. Anthony Cervini from Sikich LLP. Mr. Cervini commended IVCC for investing the time 
and resources in preparing an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, which goes above and 
beyond the required report responsibilities, and congratulated the College on receiving the 
Certificate of Achievement in Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Financial 
Officers Association. Mr. Cervini reported Sikich LLP issued a clean, unmodified opinion on the 
College’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. The Independent Auditors 
Report on internal control over financial reporting no instances of non-compliance and no material 
weaknesses in the internal control. The Single Audit Report is a culmination of the aggregation 
and reporting of the College’s federal awards. An unmodified opinion was awarded on the 
financial statements as well as the student financial aid cluster. A significant deficiency was given 
on the late return of Title IV Financial Aid for 5 of 25 students tested. An instance of non-
compliance was given for two students out of 40 who did not student loan exit counseling 
documentation in their files. The College has already put action plans in place for both issues. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the consent agenda, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
The following items were approved in the consent agenda: 
 
Approval of Minutes – November 12, 2024 Audit Finance Committee Meeting and November 14, 
2024 Board Meeting. 
 
Approval of Bills - $1,324,615.93 
Education Fund - $972,690.71; Operations and Maintenance Fund - $78,457.10; Operations and 
Maintenance Fund - $25,420.40; Auxiliary Fund - $116,779.85; Restricted Fund - $74,043.86; 
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund - $56,866.15; Grants, Loans, and Scholarship Fund - 
$357.86. 
 

3



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
Page 3 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Treasurer’s Report 
 
Personnel 
Approved stipends for pay periods ending November 2, 2024 and November 16, 2024, and Part-
Time Faculty and Staff Appointments for November 2024. 
 
STUDENT TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
Ms. Garretson highlighted that over 50 student-athletes have participated in the city parades in 
Spring Valley and LaSalle, and more will participate in the Oglesby parade on December 14. 
Members of the IVCC Chem Club will be visiting Fermilab in Batavia next week. Fermilab is 
America's particle physics and accelerator lab. The facility is 6,800 acres in size, and they work 
on the world's most advanced particle accelerators and dig down to the smallest building elements 
of matter. IVCC and Marquette Academy are sponsoring a blood drive in Ottawa on Tuesday, 
December 17 at Trinity Lutheran Church. Students had the opportunity to destress by enjoying 
some hot cocoa, jewelry beading, coloring, and neurography art to induce calming. Final exams 
started this week, and the campus will be closed December 20 - January 1. Spring classes begin 
Thursday, January 9. Ms. Garretson and her family hosted three international student-athletes in 
their home for Thanksgiving. 
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Dr. Morris highlighted the Inspiration Tree located near the nursing lab where students can write 
their success, worries, and challenges. The Ottawa Center did a puzzle as part of their destressing 
and made it part of their decor. Several different holiday displays are in the Student Life Space 
and throughout campus.  
 
Students participated in cookie decorating and bake sales this month. Project Success hosted a 
Friendsgiving event; the Art Club held a fundraiser for a trip to Chicago; the Peer Mentors held 
activities for stress relief; Project Success had smoothies and treats for their student during finals, 
and the winners of the first Eagles Run, sponsored by our cross country team, were highlighted. 
 
Highlighted events on campus including the Marketing and Communications team open house and 
the Adult Ed teachers, staff, and volunteers holiday celebration. Continuing Education escorted 
approximately 300 community members on various bus trips this fall. Eighteen students completed 
the non-credit surgical tech program and another 8 scheduled to complete the program on 
December 9. The first ever dual credit Ag class will be held at L-P High School this Spring and 
the first ever Dual Credit Advisory Committee meeting was held on campus.  
 
Concerts were held earlier this month for the Jazz Band, Wind Ensemble, and Choir. The Kumar 
Family created a $20,000 scholarship for our nursing program. IVAC Cornerstone recipients 
included retired President Jerry Corcoran; Director of Adult Education Sara Escatel; Board of 
Trustees Vice Chair Jay McCracken; and IVCC Foundation Board Member OJ Stoutner. The Red 
Cross Club and Marquette Academy are sponsoring a blood drive on December 17 at the Trinity 
Luther Church in Ottawa. 
 

4



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
Page 4 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

A retirement celebration was held for Valery Calvetti, part-time counselor, at the Ottawa Center. 
Tom Nestler, Director of Truck Driver Training, participated in all three of the area holiday 
parades. Forever Plaid shows were held and included audience involvement. 
 
Other events on campus included Explore IVCC; a U of I Extension event for agriculture; Chief 
White Winnebago, Gerald Savage presented for Native American History Month; Comedian Amy 
Nico Schwartz from the LGBTQ+ community promoted disability awareness on campus; Feed the 
Need collected 253 donations which stayed in our food bank; and Employee Giving Week resulted 
in a total of 110 employees donating over $25,000 to the IVCC Foundation. 
 
Monthly updates included Spring 2025 enrollment, at day -15 for a year-to-year comparison, 
shows an increase of 7.76% in credit hours and a decrease of 5.56% in headcount compared to 
Spring 2024. We are at 95.32% of budgeted hours, 95.91% of actual prior 10th day hours, and 
101.7% of the total annual budgeted credit hours. Drop for non-payment was completed this 
morning. As of 2:00 pm on December 11, 263 students were on this list to be dropped. Efforts are 
underway to reach those students to re-enroll. Key legislative initiatives being worked on by the 
Illinois Council for Community College Presidents (ICCCP) includes applied bachelor’s degree; 
dual credit; articulation and transfer; authority for local control; and workforce ecosystem. ICCCP 
legislative guiding principles include funding for community college operations; protecting local 
control; equity in higher education; and funding for capital construction projects. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Mr. McCracken stated the Audit Finance Committee meeting last month highlighted the great 
work done by Kathy Ross and her team on the audit as well as updates on our financial situation 
and planning for this coming year. 
 
DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – STEPHEN ALVIN, FACULTY EMERITUS 
A motion was made by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve Stephen Alvin for 
the designation of Faculty Emeritus, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – DR. ROSE MARIE LYNCH, FACULTY 
EMERITA 
A motion was made by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve Dr. Rose Marie Lynch 
for the designation of Faculty Emerita, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – DANIEL O’CONNOR, FACULTY 
EMERITUS 
A motion was made by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve Daniel O’Connor 
for the designation of Faculty Emeritus, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 

5



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
Page 5 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – DR. JANE SACK, FACULTY EMERITA 
A motion was made by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve Dr. Jane Sack 
for the designation of Faculty Emerita, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – JAMES STEVENSON, FACULTY 
EMERITUS 
A motion was made by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve James Stevenson for 
the designation of Faculty Emeritus, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – LINDA HAWKINS, STAFF EMERITA 
A motion was made by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Ms. Garretson to approve Linda Hawkins 
for the designation of Staff Emerita, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – BONNIE CAMPBELL, ADMINISTRATOR 
EMERITA 
A motion was made by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve Bonnie Campbell 
for the designation of Administrator Emerita, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – SUE ISERMANN, ADMINISTRATOR 
EMERITA 
A motion was made by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve Sue Isermann for 
the designation of Administrator Emerita, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – DR. ROBERT P. MARSHALL, 
ADMINISTRATOR EMERITUS 
A motion was made by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve Dr. Robert P. 
Marshall for the designation of Administrator Emeritus, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
2024 TAX LEVY 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Dr. Boyles to adopt the Tax Levy Resolution, 
Certificate of Tax Levy, Resolution of Intent, Notice of Intent to Increase Tax Levy, and Certificate 
of Compliance with the Truth and Taxation Act, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 

6



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
Page 6 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

APPROVAL – SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETING DATES AND TIMES FOR 2025 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the dates as presented 
for 2025 and will provide public notice of this schedule. All meetings will take place at the 
designated time in Room C-307 (the Board Room) on the campus of Illinois Valley Community 
College at 815 Orlando Smith Road, Oglesby, IL. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL – BOARD POLICY 05.04 USE OF CAMPUS AND NETWORK 
COMPUTING RESOURCES 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL – BOARD PROCEDURE 06.20 NAME OPTIONS FOR STUDENTS AND 
EMPLOYEES 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL – BOARD PROCEDURE 01.15.00 BOARD TRAVEL, CONFERENCE, AND 
MEETING EXPENSE 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve the Board Procedure, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
FACULTY APPOINTMENT – DR. SAMMY KUMAR, CNA INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve, contingent on the 
post-offer background check, the appointment of Dr. Sammy Kumar as CNA Instructor effective 
January 6, 2025 at Step G-8, an annualized salary of $70,142 on the 2024/2025 faculty salary 
schedule (Collective Bargaining Agreement 2022 – 2026, Article XII). 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Morris stated IVCC is fortunate to have someone with the credentials of Dr. Kumar. Through 
his career paths has discovered community colleges is where he wants to be. 
 
Dr. Kumar thanked the Board of Trustees for approving his appointment. He also thanked the 
search committee, Dr. Morris, staff, and Mary Beth Herron for all their time and effort.  
 
 
 

7



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
Page 7 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

FACULTY RETIREMENT – CHRISTINE BLAYDES, CNA INSTRUCTOR/PROGRAM 
COORDINATOR 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Ms. Garretson to accept the retirement of Christine 
Blaydes, CNA Instructor/Program Coordinator, effective December 31, 2024. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
Mr. Solon pointed out the information items on pages 76-81 of the Board book. 
 
TRUSTEE COMMENT 
Ms. Goetz stated she will miss the holiday breakfast this year but wished everyone happy holidays. 
 
Mr. Solon thanked Kathy Ross for helping him to better understand the request related to the tax 
levy and clear up his concerns. 
 
Mr. McCracken stated we have a great team and agreed with Mr. Solon’s comment. He thanked 
Dr. Morris and Kathy for meeting with them on more than on occasion to go over the tax levy and 
he believes this is a balanced approach. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
Mr. Solon requested a motion and a roll call vote at 6:27 p.m. to enter into a closed session to 
discuss: 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of 
specific employees of the public body; 2) collective bargaining; 3) pending or imminent litigation; 
and 4) closed session minutes.   
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to enter into a closed session. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
The Board entered closed session at 6:29 p.m. 
 
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to return to the regular meeting. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
The regular meeting resumed at 6:48 p.m. 
 
CLOSED SESSION MINUTES 
It was moved by Ms. Garretson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve and retain the closed 
session minutes of the November 14, 2024 Board Meeting. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Ms. Stevenson, Mr. 
McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
  

8



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
Page 8 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

OTHER 
Dr. Morris informed the Board interviews are currently underway for the full-time English faculty. 
As done previously, we will send to you with our Board materials and ask for a confirmation of 
the appointment if an individual selected is to start in January.  
 
Dr. Morris stated Mr. Zukowski has been working on two tax objections dealing with Hall High 
School. One partners with Spring Valley Elementary Schools, and one partners with Ladd School. 
Mr. Zukowski attended the Board of Review hearings on two parcels of land in Spring Valley. The 
first is St. Margaret’s Hospital and the second is the Spring Valley Industrial Park. An update was 
provided on the status at this item, with decisions pending. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Solon declared the meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________    _____________________________ 
Everett J. Solon, Board Chair     Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 

9



 

 
 
 
 
 

DISTRICT NO. 513 

 
 
 

TREASURER'S REPORT  

December 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kathy Ross 
V.P. for Business Services and Finance/Treasurer 

 
Eric Johnson 

Controller 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



Action Item 13 
 
Purchase Request – Audio-Visual Technology Upgrades for CTC Conference Center, 
Kitchen, Yoga Studio 

The College is seeking to upgrade the Audio-Visual Technology in the CTC Conference 
Center (CTC124/125), Kitchen (CTC122/123) and Yoga Studio (CTC121). These systems 
are currently coupled together into one system which, if it goes down, impacts three rooms 
at the same time on campus. The technology used in these rooms was installed when the 
CTC was originally built over 10 years ago and is in dire need of replacement. The updates 
to these classrooms need to adhere to the standards for Audio-Visual technology adopted 
at the college and are highlighted through leveraging the same technology that has been 
used in recent implementations in the Boardroom, D201, and other rooms on campus.   

The benefits from this upgrade will include improved performance and compatibility with 
existing Distance Learning Technology on campus, leveraging both Zoom and Microsoft 
Teams compatibility as well as streamlining usability and enhancing the technology 
offering in these rooms. 
 
The IT Department solicited and reviewed vendor solution proposals. Four quotes were 
evaluated, and a vendor was selected who had the most cost-effective solution that aligns 
with IVCC technology standards and compatibility. The funding for this project will be 
covered through our normal FY2025 IT budget.  

Company: Quote Amount: 
Intech Innovations $323,955.37 
CTI $332,059.45 
Room Ready $333,383.82 
Dell Technologies $344,191.19 

 

This is a technology purchase that must be compatible with our existing systems and 
technology standards and is exempted from bidding per 110 ILCS 805/3-27(f). 

 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the Board authorize the purchase of Audio-Visual 
Systems upgrades for the CTC Conference Center (CTC124/125), Kitchen 
(CTC122/123) and Yoga Studio (CTC121) from Intech Innovations in the amount of 
$323,955.37.  

 

KPI 6: Resource Management 

 

38



 
 

 
  
                  MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO: Kathy Ross      
 
FROM: Justin Denton 
 
DATE: December 11, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: CTC A/V Technology Purchases 
 
 
 
To maintain Illinois Valley Community College's commitment to a regular technology 
refresh, the IT Department proposes to refresh the technology utilized within the CTC 
Conference Center (CTC124/125), Kitchen (CTC122/123), and Yoga Studio (CTC121). The 
equipment in these rooms is older than 10 years of age and is past end of life. 
 
These systems are currently coupled together into one system which, if it goes down, 
impacts three rooms at the same time on campus. The technology used in these rooms was 
installed when the CTC was originally built over 10 years ago and is in dire need of 
replacement.  The updates to these classrooms need to adhere to the standards for AV 
technology adopted at the College and are highlighted through leveraging the same 
technology that has been used in recent implementations in the Boardroom, D201, and 
other rooms on campus.   
 
The IT Department has spent multiple hours evaluating vendor solution proposals, has 
received quotes from four vendors and will be selecting the vendor who has the most cost-
effective solution and aligns with IVCC technology standards and compatibility. The 
funding for this project will be covered through our normal FY2025 IT budget. (Quotes 
attached.) 
 
I express my gratitude to the College for its ongoing dedication to investing in classroom 
technology. The IT Department is committed to playing its part in creating a highly sleek 
and streamlined classroom environment. We believe that this refresh will not only improve 
the computing experience in these rooms that have older technology but also improve 
performance and compatibility with existing Distance Learning Technology on campus, 
leveraging both Zoom and Microsoft Teams compatibility. This is a technology purchase 
 

39



that must be compatible with our existing systems and technology standards and is 
exempted from bidding per 110 ILCS 805/3-27(f). 
 
I am asking the Board of Trustees to approve the purchase of Audio-Visual Systems 
upgrades for the CTC Conference Center (CTC124/125), Kitchen (CTC122/123) and Yoga 
Studio (CTC121) which is not to exceed cost of $340,000. This purchase will be funded by 
the FY2025 Technology Budget.   
 
Please let me know if you have questions or concerns. 
 
 
 
 

40



41



42



43



Action Item 14 
 
Purchase Request – Furniture for Distance Learning Classroom CTC-206 
 
The FY25 budget included monies for updates to classrooms in response to Master Plan 
identified objectives. With this in mind, we chose some classroom furniture samples from 
KI and had several student, staff and faculty groups come in and give feedback on the 
different types of furniture for the CTC classroom containing new distance learning 
technology as part of our USDA grant. We will be purchasing several different kinds of 
updated classroom furniture to furnish this first classroom from KI to showcase flexible 
classroom options as we work towards future classroom upgrades.  
 
This furniture is being purchased through the IPHEC 1905 purchasing cooperative. 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends Board approval to purchase furniture for the 
Distance Learning Classroom in the CTC building from KI at a cost of $27,120.30. 
 
 
 
KPI 6: Resource Management 

44



Action Item 15 

Approval – Inactivation of Basic and Advanced Dental Office Management 
Certificates  

Lyndsey Beetz, Dental Program Coordinator, and Heather Seghi, Dean of Health 
Professions are requesting the inactivation of two Dental Certificates: Basic Dental Office 
Management and Advanced Dental Office Management.  

There has been no interest in the two certificates and no students have ever enrolled or 
applied for the two certificates.  

There is no need for a teach out for the two certificates due to lack of interest and 
enrollment.  

The IVCC Curriculum Committee is recommending that the Board of Trustees approve the 
inactivation of the two mini certificates: Basic Dental Office Management and Advanced 
Dental Office Management.  

 

 

Recommendation:  

The Administration recommends Board approval of the inactivation of the Basic 
Dental Office Management Certificate.  

 

Recommendation:  

The Administration recommends Board approval of the inactivation of the Advanced 
Dental Office Management Certificate. 

 

 

KPI 1: Student Academic Success 
KPI 5: District Population Served 

45



Action Item 16 
Approval – ECE Director Qualified Certificate 
 
Tammy Landgraf, Early Childhood Education Program Coordinator/Instructor and Lirim 
Neziroski, Dean of Humanities, Fine Arts and Social Science, would like to offer an ECE Director 
Qualified Certificate to allow advanced ECE students and adult students in the workforce to 
become director qualified with DCFS competencies. 
 
The goal is to build a certificate for staff working in childcare. The certificate provides students 
the knowledge, skills, and experience necessary to provide leadership and coaching skills in the 
workplace. The ECE Director Qualified Certificate may lead to higher wages through employer 
recognition (ExceleRate Illinois) or salary supplement programs (Gateways scholarships). 
Credentialed applicants may be given preference for job opportunities or salary advancement.   
 
The Certificate will use existing courses except for one new course ECE 2205 Leadership and 
Coaching. This certificate is recognized through DCFS licensed programs.   
 
The IVCC Curriculum Committee is recommending that the Board of Trustees approve the ECE 
Director Qualified Certificate as presented in the attached curriculum guide. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 

The Administration recommends Board approval of the ECE Director Qualified Certificate, 
as presented.  

 

 

KPI 1:  Student Academic Success 
KPI 5:  District Population Served 
 

46



ECE Director Qualified Certificate (21 credit hours)  
This certificate is intended for students who already have 60 college credit hours and are seeking to become director-
qualified with the DCFS licensing required business/administration coursework/competencies. 
  
 
ECE 2203 – Supervision and Administration 3 credit hours  
ECE 2205– Leadership and Coaching in ECE 3 credit hours  
ECE 1201 – Child Guidance/Child Study 3 credit hours  
*ECE course 3 credit hours  
*ECE course 3 credit hours  
*ECE course 3 credit hours  
*ECE course 3 credit hours  
21 credit hours  
 
 
Students may choose from the approved ECE courses to complete the Director Qualified Certificate:  
ECE 1000 – Introduction to Early Childhood Education  
ECE 1027 – Child, Family, School, Community  
ECE 1005 – Health, Safety, and Nutrition for the Young Child  
ECE 1206 – Foundations in Early Childhood Education  
ECE 1202 – Foundations and Trends of Early Care and Education for Infants, Toddlers, and Twos  
ECE 2202 – Curriculum Programming  
ECE 2005 – The Exceptional Learner  
ECE 1203 – Creative Activities  
ECE 1204 – Developmentally Appropriate Practice for Infants, Toddlers, Twos  
ECE 2207 – Observation and Assessment  
ECE 2208 – Language Development  
ECE 1205 – Math for Young Children  
PSY 2001 – Child Growth and Development is recognized as a DCFS-approved ECE course 

47



 

 Action Item 17 

Approval-Board Policy  
 
Board Policy 04.06 – Audits is an update to policy. The changes to policy are not significant 
and are designed to bring the practice into alignment with policy related to the information 
shared with the Board currently. This policy was shared with the Planning Committee in 
December 2024 and with the Audit Finance Committee in January 2025 and is being 
brought forward for approval. 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Board Policy, as presented. 
 
 
 
KPI 6:  Resource Management 
 
 
 

48



Board Policy 04.06  page 1 

 

 
A statement of the financial condition of the College shall be published annually in accordance 
with State law. 
 
An annual audit will be conducted of the College’s financial transactions by a certified public 
accountant licensed to practice public accounting in the State of Illinois and appointed by the Board 
of Trustees. At least every six years the Board will open bids to select an auditing firm. Selection 
will be made on costs, qualifications, and ability to serve the needs of the College. The audit will 
be in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by statutes or laws governing 
community college operations in the State of Illinois. 
 
The formal audit report will be available at: 
http://www.ivcc.edu/businessservices 
 
The Ccontroller and/or the Vice President for Business Services and Finance will keep the Board 
informed of the financial condition of the College by providing a monthly budget financial reports.  
The monthly reports will include: 
 

• Financial Highlights 
• Combined Balance Sheet for all funds 
• Budget to aActual sStatements for all funds 
• Statement of cCash fFlows 
• Investment sStatus rReports for all investments 
• Check register and schedule of checks greater than $5,000. 

 
 

 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 
  

Subject: Audits  Effective Date: 04/19/2011 
   Last Reviewed: 04/14/2016 
Number: 04.06  Last Revised: 04/14/2016 
      

49

https://www.ivcc.edu/businessservices/


RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 

Position To Be Filled: 
Administrative Assistant III - Student Services 

Number of  
Applicants: 15 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed: 3  

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services
• Crystal Credi, Dean of Student Success
• Madonna Duncan, Director of Marketing and Communications
• Luke Olivero, ESL/GED Program Manager 
• Nikki Van Nielen, Administrative Assistant BSF 

Applicant Recommended: Danielle (Jackson) Bell 

Educational Preparation: 
• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Associate in Arts

Experience: 
• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Administrative Assistant II - Student

Services; Administrative Assistant I - TRIO 
• Century 21 Windsor Realty, Ottawa, IL – Realtor 
• Bill Walsh Sierra/Chevy Customer Service, Ottawa, IL – Customer Service 
• Enterprise, Ottawa, IL – Senior Customer Service Representative

This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 
1. Understands IVCC workflows through experience as an IVCC Administrative Assistant.
2. Self-motivated and organized with proven experience in event management and

promotion.
3. Highly engaging and displayed a strong comfort level working with students and 

developing professional working relationships with faculty and staff.
4. Possesses a careful eye for detail allowing her to implement creative and effective

solutions to increase efficiency and improve quality of project results.

Recommended Wage:  $22.22 hourly Effective Date:  12/16/2024 

Mary Beth Herron 
Director of Human Resources 

Information Item 18.1

50



RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 

Position To Be Filled: 
Administrative Assistant I - Financial Aid 

Number of  
Applicants: 9 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed: 3  
(4 invited, 1 declined)  

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Isamar Taylor, Director of Financial Aid
• Miguel Hermosillo, Bursar
• Jill Wohrley, Reconciliation & Compliance Specialist
• Sarah Goetz, Records and International Student Specialist 
• Rebecca Zamora, Dean of Workforce Development

Applicant Recommended: Sarah Ursini 

Educational Preparation: 
• University of Illinois, Urbana-Champaign, IL – Bachelor of Fine Arts in Painting
• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Associate of Applied Science in

Horticulture/Floriculture; Associate in Arts

Experience: 
• University of Illinois Extension, Ottawa, IL – Office Support Associate
• Burns Machine Company, Ottawa, IL – Accounting Clerk 
• Verilife, Ottawa, IL – Store Manager; Assistant General Manager 

This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 
1. Exceptionally prepared during the interview process which demonstrated organizational

skills that will ensure a structured and detail-oriented approach.
2. Displayed professionalism and courtesy throughout the interview process.
3. Extensive customer service experience, show casing a genuine commitment.

Recommended Wage:  $17.00 hourly Effective Date:  01/02/2025 

Mary Beth Herron 
Director of Human Resources 

Information Item 18.2

51



Board Policy 04.09 page 1 

Purpose 
This policy describes the guidelines for unreserved fund balances in the College’s operating 
(general) fund. 

Goal 
Fund balance is the balance of a fund after all liabilities have been deducted from the assets of the 
fund. Unreserved fund balances will be unallocated cash at the completion of each fiscal year. The 
goal is to establish and maintain a general fund balance of 25 percent of normal annual operating 
expenditures. 

Utilization 
The proposed recommended use of the unreserved general fund balance is for projects in the 
Master Plan or other unanticipated one-time expenditures that do not result in recurring operating 
costs. Expenditures from the unreserved fund balance must be approved by the Board of Trustees. 

Replenishment of Reserve Deficits 
In the event the balance falls below 25 percent, the Vice President for Business Services and 
Finance will implement and submit to the Board of Trustees, in conjunction with the proposed 
budget, a plan for corrective action to restore the fund balance to its goal of 25 percent. 

Annual Review 
Compliance of this policy will be reviewed by the Vice President for Business Services and 
Finance during the budget adoption process. 

The Board of Trustees will receive a report of year-end reserves in the general fund as part of the 
year-end financial report. 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Fund Balance Effective Date: 04/19/2011 
Last Reviewed: 04/19/2011 

Number: 04.09 Last Revised: 04/19/2011 

Information Item 18.3

52



    MEMORANDUM 
TO: Dr. Tracy Morris, Kathy Ross 

FROM: Eric Johnson 

DATE: January 2, 2025 

SUBJECT: IRS 2025 Mileage Rate 

The Business Office has received notice that effective January 1, 2025, the IRS Standard 
Mileage Rate has been increased to $0.70 cents per mile. Board Procedure 03.04.00 will 
be updated accordingly.  

Information Item 18.4

53



Information Item 18.5

54



/Jo,,rr/4 y-,1,-v.rfus / �1.-(;

Sl-tL✓I + !LJ-m;K.

vfh411t- YF f, 
J} /JJUe,,v-5 /fl 1/LUrLH 'J- °if

(} d,,ti ft bv,7c3u /, J k

af� tJ12>prU-fa_ld___

h,,,-- £trU ��1-

LNe ·-
/(u 6� 

�,·l;J 

For all the kindness you have shown, 
we thank you very much. 

For sympathy in sorrowing days. 
For friendships healing touch. 

With gratitude, our hearts are full. 
Though words cannot convey the 

tender thoughts and thankfulness we 
holdfor you today. 

The Family of Catherine Louise Bangert 

Information Item 18.6

55



N
AM

E
PO

SI
TI

O
N

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T 

/ 
DI

VI
SI

O
N

ST
AT

U
S 

(P
T)

Pa
rt

-t
im

e;
 

(F
T)

Fu
ll-

tim
e

Da
te

 H
R 

Re
ce

iv
ed

 N
ot

ic
e 

/ 
Le

tt
er

 o
n 

Fi
le

 (Y
) /

 (N
)

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e
Re

as
on

La
w

le
ss

, D
us

tin
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l T
ut

or
Le

ar
ni

ng
 R

es
ou

rc
es

PT
12

/0
4/

20
24

 (Y
)

12
/3

/2
02

4
Re

sig
na

tio
n

Fu
rla

n,
 M

ic
ha

el
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l T
ut

or
Le

ar
ni

ng
 R

es
ou

rc
es

PT
09

/2
9/

20
24

 (Y
)

12
/1

3/
20

24
Re

sig
na

tio
n 

of
 

Pr
of

. T
ut

or
 

po
sit

io
n 

on
ly

; 
re

m
ai

ns
 

em
pl

oy
ed

 a
s P

T 
In

st
ru

ct
or

Sh
ym

an
sk

i, 
Ke

lly
W

or
kf

or
ce

 C
ar

ee
rs

 N
av

ig
at

or
W

or
kf

or
ce

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
FT

 (g
ra

nt
-fu

nd
ed

)
01

/0
2/

20
25

 (Y
)

1/
30

/2
02

5
Re

sig
na

tio
n

Ha
us

er
, J

en
CN

A 
In

st
ru

ct
or

He
al

th
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

ns
PT

01
/0

6/
20

25
 (Y

)
1/

6/
20

25
Re

sig
na

tio
n

IT
EM

 F
O

R 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
SE

PA
RA

TI
O

N
S 

FR
O

M
 E

M
PL

O
YM

EN
T

BO
AR

D 
O

F 
TR

U
ST

EE
S 

- J
AN

U
AR

Y 
15

, 2
02

5

Information Item 18.7

56



Approved by the Board (01-18-2024) 

College Core Values 
Achieving Excellence through our Core Values (acronym is I-CARE) 

Integrity 
Compassion 
Accountability 
Respect 
Equity 

Vision Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College will foster personal and professional 
growth and well-being for our students and community through growing 

programs, updated facilities, and educational innovation. 

Mission Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities for 

students and our community by providing access to affordable, 
high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 


	Board Packet Cover (with new branding)
	815 North Orlando Smith Road
	A G E N D A
	NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding


	Board Packet Inside Cover August 2024
	Board Agenda - January 15, 2025
	ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	A G E N D A


	DRAFT Board Minutes - December 12, 2024
	Dr. Morris informed the Board interviews are currently underway for the full-time English faculty. As done previously, we will send to you with our Board materials and ask for a confirmation of the appointment if an individual selected is to start in ...
	Dr. Morris stated Mr. Zukowski has been working on two tax objections dealing with Hall High School. One partners with Spring Valley Elementary Schools, and one partners with Ladd School. Mr. Zukowski attended the Board of Review hearings on two parce...
	ADJOURNMENT
	Mr. Solon declared the meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m.
	____________________________    _____________________________ Everett J. Solon, Board Chair     Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary

	treasurers report cover-NEW branding
	Financial pages - scanned
	Part-Time Spreadsheet
	Action Item JAN_2025-(board) - BOT request - CTC AV Refresh
	CTC AV purchase memo Kathy Ross 12.11.24
	MEMORANDUM

	IVCCScan_20250106_111944
	Purchase Request - Distance Learning Classroom in CTC
	Dental Office Management Certificate Inactivations
	Board Memo Approval - ECE Director Qualified Certificate
	ECE Director Qualified Certificate Guidesheet
	Board Policy Action Item 04.06
	04.06 Audits DRAFT 11-21-24
	Bell_Danielle Appt Form (2024-12-16)
	Ursini_Sarah Appt Form (2025-01-02)
	04.09 Fund Balance DRAFT 11-21-24 Reviewed No Changes
	Memo -Jan 2025 Mileage Rate increase
	MEMORANDUM

	LEASE Thank You
	Family of Cathy Bangert Thank You
	2025-01 Employee Separations Report
	Sheet1




